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The Ashkenazi Jews arrived in Mexico at the beginning of the twentieth
century. Being few in number, they prayed in the same small place as Jews
of Sephardi descent. Yet differences between both groups appeared almost
immediately because of the different styles of prayer service. These differ-
ences forced the Ashkenazi Jews to leave and search for a place of their own.
This event can be considered as the initiation of the Kehild Ashkenazi in
Mexico, which occurred in 1922. This study presents five early documents
in Spanish related to this founding and its development through the
following seventy years.

The Kehild Ashkenazi in Mexico was founded in 1922 under the
name Nidjei Israel. The founders were immigrants from Poland,
Russia, and other countries of Eastern Europe, observant Jews who
needed a place to pray. Previously they had done so with the
Sephardi Jews, who had preceded them to Mexico from Arab coun-
tries, especially Syria, but the differences in Sephardi services forced
the Ashkenazim to organize themselves independently in a place of
their own.

The initial meeting attracted 30 people whose first decision was
to name their incipient organization “Nidjei Israel,” and this for the
following reasons:
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1. The word Nidjei means “the expelled” — the founding mem-
bers had been expelled both from their countries of origin and from
the Sephardi synagogue.

2. The numerical value of the Hebrew letters making up the name
Nidjei Israel is equal to 613 — the total number of mitzvot.

3. In honor of the secretary’s father, whose name was Israel.

The first function of the institution was religious, but with the
increasing pressure of new arrivals seeking help, the Board of
Directors was forced to create a “Beneficencia” with resources to
provide financial help. In addition, they soon had to create a medical
clinic to take care of their health problems. The opening of a cem-
etery was the next logical step and with the passing of time, other
functions were added to the original program. In order to provide
Jewish education, a Talmud Torah was opened, followed by the
opening of the Colegio Israelita. Several years later the Yavne and
Tarbut schools were established.

After several discussions between Nidjei Israel, the Zionist Fed-
eration and the Comite Central Israelita, the Kehila Ashkenazi was
founded in 1957 under the leadership of Nidjei Israel which imme-
diately became the central and most important institution of the
Ashkenazi community in Mexico. Simon Feldman, a prominent
activist and businessman, was elected to the presidency of the
Kehila, where he remained until 1987. In that year the Kehila had
elections and a younger generation took over the Board of Directors.

Seventy years after its founding, the Kehila archives became
available for research. Five constitutional documents of the Kehila
were selected in order to show the development of this institution,
and they are as follows:

The first document was written in Hebrew on the inside cover of
the Shulchan Aruch. In it we learn of the creation of the Nidjei Israel
community in 1923 (sic) (the actual date is a year earlier — 1922), and
that it was formed by Jews who had immigrated to Mexico from
Poland, Ukraine, Russia, Lithuania, Rumania and Austro-Hungary.
In this document they thank God for having allowed them to survive
the pogroms and the bloody European wars.

The second document is the charter of incorporation written in
its official form in 1922 on the eve of Passover. In it the specific
reasons for the foundation of the Kehila are stated along with the
names of the first Board of Directors, which consisted of five men,
among them the secretary who undersigned it.

The third document is a record dating back to 1925, wherein the
creation of the “Alliance Nidchei Israel” is testified to by a notary
public. The names and addresses of those who decided to create this
institution appear in this document. It includes the first statutes
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which make clear the spirit of solidarity that existed among all its
members, and their desire to buy a piece of land to establish a
cemetery for the community. This was considered a priority. The
document, which is very detailed, contains specific points regarding
the objectives sought after by the institution.

The fourth document comprises the bylaws of the Centro de
Beneficencia Privada Israelita, as they were presented by the Board
of Directors to the general membership of the institution in March
1932. The document was officially notarized. The relevant aspects of
this document are the changing of the name from “Alianza” to
“Centro,” and the election of a new Board. Among the various
objectives listed, the following is a selection:

a. To build or to buy a building fit for the various offices of the
“Centro.”

b. The creation of a medical clinic.

c. The founding of a cultural center with a library, in order to
provide the members with better service.

d. The creation of a “Caja de Préstamos” or a fund to give loans
to Jews in need.

In addition, this document lists the requirements needed to
become a member of the center, as well the attribution of the Board
of Directors, which was elected for a term of one year with the
possibility of reelection. The bylaws were divided into six chapters
and 33 articles, and were in effect for almost 60 years — between 1932
and 1991.

The fifth document, containing nine chapters and thirty articles,
consists of new bylaws of a newly-named “Comunidad Ashkenazi
de Mexico,” which were presented to a notary public by the acting
Board of Directors on November 12, 1991. As of 1993, this Board was
still in office and was comprised mainly of second generation mem-
bers — individuals born in Mexico — and of descendants of the
original founders of the institution. Itis important to note thatall the
members of the Board, as well as the general membership, have to be
Mexican citizens.

This new constitutional document shows that the actual
“comunidad” or Kehila, is a very strong institution, with a variety of
divisions or departments, providing not only religious, but also
secular, services to a large membership. There is an Education
Department dealing mainly with local Jewish schools. Among its
cultural activities are the printing of books, the “Comision de
Arbitraje,” established to settle mostly economic differences be-
tween members, and the commission to maintain and manage the
“Eishel” or “house of the Elders.”
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